JUL/20 1960

JUL/20 1960

Deputy Clerk

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

IN RE:

PETITION FOR REINSTATEMENT

of RONALD E. KAY

Supreme Court Case No. 72,023

The Florida Bar Case No. 88-50,837 (FRE-17C)

# INITIAL BRIEF OF THE FLORIDA BAR

JACQUELYN P. NEEDELMAN
The Florida Bar No. 262846
Bar Counsel
The Florida Bar
Suite 211, Rivergate Plaza
444 Brickell Avenue
Miami, Florida 33131
(305) 377-4445

JOHN F. HARKNESS, JR. Executive Director The Florida Bar 650 Apalachee Parkway Tallahassee, FL 323018226 (904) 222-5286

JOHN T. BERRY Staff Counsel The Florida Bar 650 Apalachee Parkway Tallahassee, FL 32301-8226 (904) 222-5286

#

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On February 29, 1988, Petitioner filed his Petition for Reinstatement in this cause. On March 9, 1988, the Honorable J. Leonard Fleet was designated referee.

A status conference was held on April 13, 1988. The parties stipulated and Judge Fleet ordered a substance abuse evaluation of Petitioner and the release of medical and other records to The Florida Bar.

In May 1988, Lance J. Thibideau entered his appearance as attorney for Petitioner. This matter was scheduled for final hearing on October 10, 1988.

On September 20, 1989, the referee ordered that L. Dennison Reed be appointed as a third expert psychologist/psychiatrist.

The final hearings in this cause were held on October 10, 1988, October 11, 1988 and October 24, 1988. On March 17, 1989, the referee issued his Report recommending that Petitioner be reinstated to the practice of law. On June 9, 1989, The Florida Bar submitted its Petition for Review at the direction of The Board of Governors of The Florida Bar.

#### STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

The Petitioner filed a Petition for Reinstatement to the practice of law. Petitioner had resigned pending disciplinary proceedings by a Supreme Court Order dated February 28, 1985 concerning his felony convictions for delivery of methaqualone and possession of cocaine. Testimony adduced by Petitioner at his sentencing hearing in the criminal case established that Petitioner was suffering from serious psychological difficulties.

The Florida Bar opposed the instant petition based upon the testimony and evidence presented. The Florida Bar presented the testimony and reports of psychologists William G. Ryan and L. Dennison Reed who both testified that Petitioner has serious psychological difficulties. (T. 94-153, 163-212, Exs. 1, 2, 3, 4). Dr. Reed believes that Petitioner would present a danger to the public if reinstated at this time because his own interests would supersede clients, with his tendency to exploit. (T. 184-186).

Petitioner openly admitted to Dr. Reed that he had had sex with female clients and had used the drug, quaaludes, to have sex with women, including clients (T. 165, 191 Ex. 4). Dr. Reed does not believe based upon his extensive testing and evaluations of Petitioner that he has undertaken any significant psychotherapy (T. 166).

Dr. Ryan additionally testified from his testing and evaluations that Petitioner does not have the sense to control

his impulses and that he does not have any judgment (T. 106). Dr. Ryan further stated that he does not believe Petitioner has sufficient impulse control and perceptive ability to function constructively with clients or others without repercussions (T. 125).

The Honorable Stephen Booher, Circuit Judge testified in opposition to Petitioner's Reinstatement. Judge Booher was the presiding judge in the criminal case that led to Petitioner's incarceration and resignation from The Florida Bar. (T. 255-309).

Petitioner presented the deposition testimony of Dr. Hugo Waldheim, psychiatrist (Petitioner's Ex. 5) which contradicted his testimony before Judge Booher. (T. 290, see sentencing testimony of Dr. Waldheim admitted into evidence).

Petitioner also introduced the report of Dr. Charles Mutter (Petitioner's Ex. 4). The Florida Bar offered to introduce into evidence the Final Judgment of Dissolution of Marriage in the cause styled In Re: The Marriage of Sharon R. Kay and Ronald E. Kay, case No. 81-10791 CV. The referee precluded the introduction of this exhibit (T. 310-314). Said June 6, 1983 Order is attached hereto as Appendix 3.

Petitioner testified at the hearing regarding his remorse for the consequences that he has suffered because of his criminal convictions and the resulting consequences of same (T. 327-362).

The Referee issued his Report recommending Petitioner's reinstatement to the practice of law (said Report of Referee is attached hereto as Appendix 4).

#### SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

I. THE REFEREE ERRED IN RECOMMENDING THAT PETITIONER HAS DEMONSTRATED THAT HE HAS BEEN REHABILITATED AND IS PRESENTLY FIT TO BE REINSTATED.

Drs. Caddy, Ryan and Reed, psychologists, all testified that Petitioner has significant or serious psychological problems (T. 82, 83, 100-110, 165-171, Exs. 1, 2, 3, 4).

The Honorable Stephen Booher testified that he felt Petitioner's misconduct was a continuing course of conduct (T. 274-275).

In <u>Williams v. The Board of Governors of The Florida Bar</u>, 173 So.2d 686 (Fla. 1965), the Petitioning attorney was denied reinstatement because the Supreme Court felt that he had not "cured the flaw in his character by the mere passage of time after he had been caught..." Similarly, the instant Petitioner has not established that he has cured the flaws in his character. The Florida Bar submits that Petitioner has failed to evidence that he has made gains in his psychological difficulties that may have contributed to his criminal misconduct and exploitive behavior.

The Referee erred in recommending that the Petitioner be reinstated in this cause.

II. THE REFEREE ERRED IN PRECLUDING THE FLORIDA BAR FROM INTRODUCING INTO EVIDENCE THE JUNE 6, 1983 FINAL JUDGMENT OF DISSOLUTION OF MARRIAGE.

Misconduct, whether or not it resulted in discipline is relevant pursuant to Petition of Wolf, 257 So.2d 547 (Fla.

1972). The preclusion of said evidence (Appendix 3) prejudiced The Florida Bar in its presentation of its case. (T.310-314).

#### **ARGUMENT**

I. THE REFEREE ERRED IN RECOMMENDING THAT PETITIONER HAS DEMONSTRATED THAT HE HAS BEEN REHABILITATED AND IS PRESENTLY FIT TO BE REINSTATED.

In the case, <u>In Re Timson</u>, 301 So.2d 448 (Fla. 1974), the Supreme Court determined that there are six (6) basic elements which, though not inclusive, will serve as a guide to deliberations on the subject of reinstatement. They are:

- 1. Strict compliance with the specific conditions of the disciplinary order.
- 2. Evidence of unimpeachable character and moral standing in the community.
- 3. Clear evidence of a good reputation for professional ability.
- 4. Evidence of a lack of malice and ill feeling by the Petitioner toward those who by duty were compelled to bring about the disciplinary proceeding.
- 5. Personal assurances supported by corroborating evidence revealing a sense of repentance, as well as a desire and intention of the Petitioner to conduct himself in an exemplary fashion in the future.
- 6. In cases involving misappropriation of funds, restitution is important.

#### Id., at 449.

The Florida Bar presented evidence establishing concerns regarding Respondent's moral character and sense of repentance.

In defense of his moral character, Mr. Kay has produced character witnesses. However, the testimony of Dr. Glenn Caddy, (pages 76-92), Dr. William G. Ryan (pages 94-153), and Dr. L. Dennison Reed, (pages 163-212) psychologists, all concur that Petitioner, Ronald E. Kay, has serious psychological problems.

(See reports attached hereto as an Appendix 1 and 2 of Drs. Ryan and Reed, Exhibits 1, 2, 3 and 4).

Dr. Caddy testified on behalf of the Petitioner and stated that he did not conduct any recent testing of the Petitioner (page 91), but that Petitioner was basically the same man in a personality dynamic sense that he was when he saw him back in 1983-1984 (page 90). Dr. Caddy stated that Petitioner can be reinstated with close supervisory monitoring and psychological therapy (page 87). However, Dr. Caddy testified and agreed with Dr. Reed and Ryan that Petitioner has limitations in his judgment (T. 82-83). Dr. Caddy also advised that Petitioner is capable of viewing the shortest distance between two (2) points. (T. 86).

Drs. Reed and Ryan testified and listed in their respective reports significant problems that presently exist. In a reinstatement proceeding, the burden is on the petitioning party. Rule 3-7.9(k) of the Rules of Discipline provides "If the petitioner is found unfit to resume the practice of law, the petition shall be dismissed." The Florida Bar submits that the evidence and testimony presented demonstrates that Petitioner is presently unfit to resume the practice of law.

Dr. Reed stated in his report, at page 9, The Florida Bar's Exhibit 4, that Mr. Kay has a "strong tendency to exploit others for personal gain while disregarding ethical considerations and the law." Dr. Reed testified, "that based upon his testing and evaluation of Petitioner that, he does not believe that Mr. Kay could be relied upon to discharge his duties as an attorney in

an ethical manner or even necessarily a legal manner, and certainly not with the amount of trust that is part of the position that is part of being an attorney."

Dr. Reed based his conclusion on Petitioner's pattern of behavior. (T. 165-171). Dr. Reed testified that Petitioner has shown sociopathic tendencies, with a tendency to lie and steal. (T. 173, Ex. 4).

Dr. Ryan testified that Petitioner advised that Petitioner put women into two (2) categories, ladies as opposed to women who were addicts or had difficulties with drugs, and the whole purpose of the quaaludes were for leg openers (T. 101). Said distinction causes great concern. As an attorney, Petitioner would be called upon to represent persons having various difficulties. Further, Dr. Ryan believes that Petitioner would react poorly to situations of stress. (T. 109).

The Honorable Stephen H. Booher, Circuit Judge in the criminal case, testified regarding the seriousness of Respondent's criminal acts and the fact that he relied on Dr. Hugo Waldheim's representations that Ronald E. Kay would receive long term psychological therapy while on probation. (T.275-281). Dr. Waldheim's testimony before Judge Booher and his November 1981 letter (attached as Appendix 5) clearly contradict his testimony given in his deposition in this proceeding. (T. 290, Ex. 9 & 10 testimony of Dr. Waldheim in sentencing transcript in criminal case). Additionally the final order of the Board of Medical Examiners, dated May 12, 1984, introduced as a Florida Bar impeachment exhibit, establishes reasons for Dr. Waldheim's

suspension and probation concerning his medical license other than the reason testified to by Dr. Waldheim in his deposition. (A copy is attached hereto as Appendix 6).

Judge Booher had previously testified on Petitioner's behalf in a previous reinstatement hearing from a disbarment order concerning other misconduct on Petitioner's part. (See <a href="#">The Florida Bar v. Kay</a>, 232 So.2d 378 (Fla. 1970) (T. 255). At that time, Judge Booher thought Petitioner's conduct was an isolated incident. (T. 255) Judge Booher expressed that the testimony elicited in the recent criminal case evidenced that Petitioner had used his position as an attorney to engage in misconduct involving exchanging a drug, to wit: quaaludes for sexual purposes. (T. 261). Judge Booher does not believe the Petitioner should be reinstated as he used his license to practice law to facilitate the sexual offenses he committed. (T. 280).

Judge Booher felt as, Dr. Reed did, that Petitioners' misconduct was a continuing course of conduct that had continued for a long period of time. (T. 274-275).

Most importantly, Judge Booher advised that Dr. Waldheim at the January 8, 1982 sentencing hearing in the criminal case stated that Petitioner's psychosexual difficulties and his dependent/independent conflicts put him in a situation where he was constantly flirting with problems that would result in disaster, that Petitioner flirted with them. (T. 281). Judge Booher then stated "and I think giving him a license to practice law would be like giving a killer a gun". (T. 281).

Petitioner presented character witness that certainly were not competent concerning the psychological difficulties testified to by the various experts. It is interesting to note, however, in light of Petitioners' psychological difficulties that Petitioner did not present any women to testify as character witnesses or otherwise.

Petitioner introduced as an exhibit the report of Dr.

Mutter, dated April 2, 1988. Said report disagreed with

Petitioner's own witness', Dr. Waldheim's November 10, 1981

letter, concerning sexual exploits and psychosexual proclivities

of the Petitioner. (Ex. 9, Appendix 5).

Dr. Reed disagreed with Dr. Mutter's report and believed that Dr. Mutter had relied mainly on computer testing. (T. 179).

The Florida Bar submits that it is quite noteworthy that Ronald E. Kay in his testimony on October 24, 1988 exhibited no repentance for his misconduct. Mr. Kay expressed that he was upset about everything that had happened to him personally as a result of his misconduct but Mr. Kay did not exhibit any remorse for the victims of his actions. Mr. Kay did make a statement that he knows what he did was wrong, but the majority of his statements concerned everything that had happened to him. The Florida Bar submits that Mr. Kay's lack of repentance concerning the persons that were hurt or affected by his improper actions demonstrates that he should not be given a position of trust and the authority of being a licensed attorney in the State of Florida at this time.

The testimony of Drs. Caddy, Reed and Ryan clearly demonstrate that Petitioner needs extensive psychotherapy at this time. The Florida Bar's position is that Petitioner should have this extensive psychotherapy prior to being reinstated to The Florida Bar. The Florida Bar submits that the public should not have Ronald E. Kay in a position of authority and trust until such time as there is expert testimony supported by recent testing that Petitioner would not be a threat to the public and that Petitioner has been in therapy on a long term continuing basis and is benefiting from such treatment.

Mr. Kay admitted to Dr. Reed that while in prison on work release he pretended to attend narcotics anonymous to earn gain time. (Page 4 of The Florida Bar's Exhibit 4) This is an example of Petitioner's manipulation of others.

The testimony of Dr. Reed and his report (The Florida Bar's Exhibit 4) referred to Petitioner regretting the difficulties he personally encountered because of his criminal misconduct.

(Pages 9-10, Exhibit 4).

The Florida Bar feels it is noteworthy that although Drs. Caddy, Reed and Ryan testified that Petitioner would need extensive psychotherapy, that Petitioner stated to Dr. Reed, "I think I have my situation under control and don't think I have a present need for psychological counseling." (Page 9 of Exhibit 4).

In <u>Williams v. The Board of Governors of The Florida Bar</u>,
173 So.2d 686 (Fla. 1965), the petitioning attorney was denied
reinstatement because the Supreme Court felt that he had not

"cured the flaw in his character by the mere passage of time after he has been caught and has confessed." Similarly, Ronald E. Kay has not established that he has cured the flaws in his character. The testimony of Drs. Caddy, Reed and Ryan indicate that extensive therapy is needed to do so. In <u>Williams</u>, as in the instant case, the petitioner had had a number of prominent people testify on his behalf.

In <u>In Re: Alfieri</u>, 529 So.2d 116 (Fla. 1988), the Supreme Court denied the Petitioner's Petition for Reinstatement based on the seriousness of the petitioner's criminal misconduct which had led to his resignation, his further misconduct in not advising the New York Bar of his Florida disciplinary proceedings. Id.

In the present case, Ronald E. Kay similarly committed serious criminal misconduct and there is expert testimony that Petitioner has psychological difficulties that presently make him unfit to practice law.

The Supreme Court found the petitioner in Alfieri unfit to resume the practice of law. The Florida Bar submits that the instant Petitioner is also unfit to be reinstated at this time based upon the expert testimony of Drs. Reed and Ryan and Dr. Caddy's testimony concerning Petitioner's difficulties. The Florida Bar feels that before one petitions for reinstatement that said person should do everything possible to be ready for reinstatement. The record is abundant that Petitioner Kay has not had sufficient psychological counseling or psychotherapy or has not benefited from it to a degree to entitle him to be reinstated at this time, particularly where Petitioner Kay

advised Dr. Reed that he did not believe he had a need for counseling.

The Florida Bar submits that Petitioner has failed to demonstrate that he has made gains in his psychological difficulties that may have contributed to his criminal convictions and exploitive behavior.

In <u>The Petition of Wolf</u>, 257 So.2d 547 (Fla. 1972), the Supreme Court held that in a reinstatement proceeding, "the Referee may properly consider the prior disciplinary record of one seeking to be reinstated to The Florida Bar, including the number, similarity and gravity of his offenses." (citation omitted). Id, at 548.

Based upon the evidence presented, The Florida Bar submits that Petitioner's petition should be denied. The Florida Bar should not have to have the burden of closely monitoring the Petitioner while he is undergoing extensive psychotherapy. For the protection of the public, Ronald E. Kay should not be placed in a position of trust and authority at this time.

Pursuant to Rule 3-7.9(1), Petitioner can file a new petition for reinstatement after a period of one (1) year has passed from the adverse judgment.

II. THE REPEREE ERRED IN PRECLUDING THE FLORIDA BAR FROM INTRODUCING INTO EVIDENCE THE JUNE 6, 1983 FINAL JUDGMENT OF DISSOLUTION OF MARRIAGE.

As previously stated in the <u>Petition of Wolf</u>, 257 So.2d 547 (Fla. 1972), the Supreme Court held in a reinstatement proceeding, "the referee may properly consider the prior

disciplinary record of one seeking to be reinstated to The Florida Bar . . . (citations omitted).

Id., at 548.

In this case, the referee improperly denied The Florida Bar from introducing into evidence a copy of his June 6, 1983 Final Judgment of Dissolution of Marriage. (T. 310-314, See Appendix 3). Misconduct, whether or not it resulted in discipline is certainly relevant pursuant to Wolf, supra, in a reinstatement proceeding. (See also In Re: Alfieri 529 So.2d 1116 (Fla. 1988).

Said final judgment contained findings that Petitioner in this dissolution proceeding had secreted and dissipated assets, had transferred substantial assets into and out of his mothers' name with impunity. Dr. Reed testified (T. 173) that Petitioner's testing presented strong sociopathic tendencies, with the tendency to lie and steal. The Florida Bar's offered exhibit, Appendix 3 evidences said behavior and the exclusion of same from evidence in this cause prejudiced The Florida Bar in the presentation of its case. Accordingly, the referee erred in precluding The Florida Bar from presenting its tendered exhibit.

### CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing, The Florida Bar respectfully requests this Honorable court to deny Petitioner's Petition for Reinstatement and to hold that the referee erred in precluding The Florida Bar from introducing into evidence the June 6, 1983 Final Judgment of Dissolution of Marriage, and tax the costs of this proceeding in the amount of \$5,238.74 against the Petitioner.