10-3

FILED
SID. WHITE

SEP 11 1989

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA CLERK, SUPREME COURT
(Before a Referee)

By _____
Deputy Clerk

CASE NO. 72,023

The Florida Bar Case
No. 88-50,837 (FRE 17C)

IN RE: PETITION OF

RONALD E. KAY FOR
REINSTATEMENT.

ANSWER BRIEF OF
THE PETITIONER RONALD E. KAY

LANCE J. THIBIDEAU, ESQ.
THE FLORIDA BAR NO. 273899
901 South Federal Highway
Suite 300
Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33316

<u>

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The Appellee agrees with Appellant's statement of the case.

Appellee would, however, point out that L. Dennison Reed is not a psychologist/psychiatrist but only a psychologist.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

On February 28, 1985 Petitioner entered into an agreement with The Florida Bar to resign pending disciplinary proceedings. The disciplinary proceedings were initiated by The Florida Bar after Appellee's felony convictions for delivery of methaqualone and possession of cocaine, Appellee had been suspended since January 22, 1982.

On February 28, 1988 Appellee filed his Petition for Reinstatement to membership in The Florida Bar.

It is Appellee's position which was supported by the trial testimony of seven (7) other witnesses that since the entry of this Court's Order on February 28, 1985 that he has rehabilitated himself and is entitled to be reinstated.

The Appellant and Appellee were both in agreement that the issue of rehabilitation was the only issue to be determined by the Referee. In determining the issue of rehabilitation the parties agreed that there were six (6) criteria as set forth in this Court's opinion in, In re Timson, 301 So.2d 448 (FLA. 1974), these six (6) elements are:

1. Strict compliance with the specific conditions of the disciplinary order.

2. Evidence of unimpeachable character and moral standing in the community.

3. Clear evidence of a good reputation for professional ability.

4. Evidence of a lack of malice and ill feeling by the Petitioner toward those who by duty were compelled to bring about the disciplinary proceeding.

5. Personal assurances supported by corroborating evidence revealing a sense of repentance, as well as a desire and intention of the Petitioner to conduct himself in an exemplary fashion in the future.

6. In cases involving misappropriation of funds, restitution is important.

Appellant did not contest elements 1, 3, 4 and 6 before the Referee, but only element 2 and 5. (T324-326).

In order to prove elements 2 and 5 Appellee called the following individuals:

- A. Rabbi Sheldon Harr; T 15 through 21
- B. Pastor James Rorie; T 238 through 247
- C. Phillip Fagelson; T 69 through 76
- D. Harold Lippman; T 61 through 68
- E. Jonn F. LaSala; T 52 through 58
- F. Joel Miller T 25 through 36
- G. Howard Zeidwig; T 37 through 49

All of these character witnesses testified that they have known Mr. Kay for a significant number of years. Each of these witnesses testified that since the time of Mr. Kay's agreement to resign his character in the community had been unimpeachable and that he enjoyed a reputation for having excellent moral character in the community.

Rabbi Harr and Pastor Rorie were perhaps best able to demonstrate to the Referee Mr. Kay's commitment to rehabilitating himself and to serving his community since the time of his arrest in 1981. It is obvious that Mr. Kay's rehabilitation as far as these two gentlemen are concerned was exhibited by deed and not merely by talk.

The Appellant did not produce once single witness to impeach Mr. Kay's reputation on the issue of character or moral standing as of the time of Appellee's resignation through the time of the reinstatement proceedings.

The Appellant called but three witnesses, Dr. L. Dennison Reed, Dr. William Ryan and the Honorable Stephen H. Booher.

Neither of the two psychologists had any facts to testify to. They merely offered opinions regarding the Appellee's mental makeup. These opinions were based on a total of five (5) to six (6) hours of examinations by the psychologist. The Appellee was initially sent to the psychologist because of the element of drug abuse that existed in the charges that led to Appellee's suspension. Each and every of the psychiatrist and psychologist who tested Appellee for the existence of drug or alcohol abuse reported negative findings.

The opinion testimony of the Appellant's two psychologist could not and did not touch on the issue of reputation and moral character.

The only other witness called by The Florida Bar was the Honorable Stephen H. Booher. Judge Booher offered no testimony as to Appellee's current character or moral standing in the community but to the contrary testified that he had no contact with Petitioner in the past six and one-half (6 1/2) years.

The remaining element which Appellant contended Appellee fell short of proving was "56. Personal Assurances supported by corroborating evidence revealing a sense of repentance and intention of Petitioner to conduct himself in an exemplary fashion in the future."

Petitioner and each and every character witness called by him assured the Referee of Appellee's feelings of guilt, shame, remorse and repentance. (T338-339).

Appellee in his direct testimony assured the Referee that he would take any action which was necessary to avoid becoming an embarrassment to The Florida Bar in the future.

After hearing the testimony of all the witnesses and having an opportunity to judge the credibility of the witnesses and determining the appropriate weight to be given to the witnesses' testimony the Referee issued his Report recommending Petitioner's reinstatement to membership in The Florida Bar.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

I. The Referee's Report finding that Petitioner has demonstrated, by clear and convincing evidence that he has been rehabilitated and that he is presently fit to be reinstated to membership in The Florida Bar is supported by substantial competent evidence and should be approved by this Court.

The Petitioner adduced substantial competent evidence through his own testimony and the testimony of seen respected members of his community that he had in fact, rehabilitated himself since the time of his suspension and was entitled to reinstatement.

Based on the factual evidence, as opposed to opinion testimony presented the Referee made a factual determination that petitioner had proved rehabilitation by clear and convincing evidence.

In, The Florida Bar, Petition of Rubin, 323 So.2d 257 (FLA. 1975), this Court in affirming the Referee's recommendation against reinstatement stated at 259:

"The Referee found that Petitioner had not met his burden of showing rehabilitation, and the record supports the Referee's findings."

The Court added a footnote to this assertion which stated "9...fact finding in disciplinary matters should not be overturned unless wholly lacking in evidentiary support." (Emphasis added.)

In seeking review of a Referee's Report "the burden shall be upon the party seeking review to demonstrate that a Report of a Referee sought to be reviewed is erroneous unlawful, or unjustified." Rule 3-7.9(j); 3-7.6(c) (5).

The Referee's finding that Petitioner had proved his rehabilitation by the clear and convincing weight of the evidence is supported by substantial competent evidence and should be approved by this Court.

II. The Referee was correct in precluding The Florida Bar from introducing into evidence Petitioner's June 6, 1983 Final Judgment of Dissolution of Marriage.

The Florida Bar has cited the case Petition of Wolf, 257 So.2d 547 (FLA. 1972) for the proposition that misconduct whether or not it resulted in discipline as being relevant information.

This is not the holding of Wolf.

The Referee in this case found that the Final Judgment of Dissolution was not part of any disciplinary action brought against Petitioner and therefore determined same not to be relevant (T 312-314).

ARGUMENT

I. The Referee's Report finding that Petitioner has demonstrated, by clear and convincing evidence that he has been rehabilitated and that he is presently fit to be reinstated to membership in The Florida Bar is supported by substantial competent evidence and should be approved by this Court.

It is clear that Appellant, in seeking review of the Referee's findings of fact and recommendations has the burden of showing to this Court that the Referee's Report is erroneous, unlawful or unjustified. Rule 3-7.9(j); 3-7.6(c)(5).

In order to carry this burden the Appellant must show that the Referee's findings of fact are wholly lacking in evidentiary support.

To Appellant's credit, they do not even attempt to suggest to this Court that there was not substantial competent evidence which allowed the Referee to reach his conclusions, indeed Appellant could not realistically take this position.

The Referee on three separate days heard testimony of both lay witnesses and expert witnesses.

Without exception the testimony of all of the lay witnesses unequivocally supported Appellee's position that he had been rehabilitated and was currently fit to resume the practice of law.

The testimony of the expert witnesses was split. Some believed that Appellee should be readmitted, that he had no significant problem which would effect his ability to function, some believed he had psychological problems which should be monitored. Only one psychologist believed Appellee had problems of such a nature that he should not be readmitted.

The finder of fact weighed this testimony in total and detemrined, fadtually, that Appellee had carried his burden of proof and had established rehabilitation and entitlement to reinstatement.

It is obvious that the Referee carefully considered the expert testimony in this case (T 320-321). It is also obvious that the Referee chose to accept some of this testimony and to disregard portions of the testimony. This is clearly exhibited in the probationary conditions the Referee has recommended be imposed on Appellee.

The mere fact that the Referee wishes Appellee to be monitored is not a basis for the denial of his reinstatement. The Florida Bar v. Willis, 459 So.2d 1026 (FLA. 1984) and The Florida Bar v. Stewart, 396 So.2d 170 (FLA. 1981).

II. The Referee was correct in precluding The Florida Bar from introducing into evidence Peitioner's June 6, 1983 Final Judgment of Dissolution of Marriage.

The Appellant sought to introduce into evidence a copy of Appellee's June 6, 1983 Final Judgment of Dissolution fo Marriage. The Appellee objected on the basis of relevance and the Referee sustained the objection on the basis that the Final Judgment of Dissolution of Marriage had nothing to do with the reasons Appellee had been arrested and finally disciplined for. (T 309-314).

The Appellant has cited the cases of Petition of Wolf, 257 So.2d 547 (FLA. 1972) and In Re: Alfieri, 529 So.2d 1116 (FLA. 1988) for the propostion that "misconduct, whether or not it resulted in discipline is certainly relevant...in a reinstatement proceeding".

That is not the holding in either case.

The Court in Wolf stated:

"Petitioner first asserts that the Referee improperly considered Petitioner's past disciplinary record, including the nature of the offense that led to his disbarment. This assertion is without merit, for the Referee may properly consider the prior disciplinary record of one seeking to be reinstated to The Florida Bar, including the number, similarity and gravity of his offense."

It is therefore clear that the Court was concerned with conduct which resulted in the Petitioner's Bar Discipline and not some other misconduct which may have had no bearing on Petitioner's fitness to practice law.

The case of Alfieri is similar in that the misconduct which the Court was interested in was Petitioner's failure to report to the New York Bar the fact that he was disbarred in Florida as the result of his criminal conviction.

The Referee correctly determined that the Final Judgment of Dissolution of Marriage had no relevance to the Reinstatement Petition and therefore correctly sustained Appellee's objection to its introduction.